
STATE OF WISCONSIN Mail to: 
Department of Safety and Professional Services PO Box 8935 
1400 E Washington Ave. Madison WI 53708-8935 
Madison WI  53703 

 Email: dsps@wisconsin.gov 
  Web: http://dsps.wi.gov 

Governor Scott Walker       Secretary Dave Ross                                                Phone: 608-266-2112 
 

MARRIAGE AND FAMILY THERAPIST SECTION 
OF THE 

MARRIAGE AND FAMILY THERAPY, PROFESSIONAL COUNSELING 
AND SOCIAL WORK EXAMINING BOARD 

Contact: Dan Williams (608) 266-2112 
Room 121A, 1400 E. Washington Avenue, Madison WI 

APRIL 9, 2013 
 

The following agenda describes the issues that the Board plans to consider at the meeting.  At 
the time of the meeting, items may be removed from the agenda.  Please consult the meeting 

minutes for a description of the actions of the Board. 
 

AGENDA 
 

12:30 P.M. 
(Or Immediately Following the Adjournment of the MPSW 1.09 Committee) 

 
OPEN SESSION - CALL TO ORDER – ROLL CALL 
 
A. Approval of Agenda (1-4) 
 
B. Approval of Minutes of February 25, 2013 (5-8) 
 
C. Administrative Matters – Discussion and Consideration 

1) Paperless Update (9-22) 
2) Staff Updates 

 
D. Legislation/Administrative Rule Matters – Discussion and Consideration 

1) Executive Order 61 (23-24) 
 
E. 2013 Goals – Discussion and Consideration 

1) Department of Health Services (DHS) Mental Health Provider Status Letter Holders 
2) Supervisory Guidelines and Addressing Disparity of Supervisor Regulations Across the 3 

Professions of the MPSW Jt. Board 
3) Amendment of Wis. Stat. 457.02 
4) Equalization of the Joint Board Professional Licensing Fees 

 
F. Position Statements – Discussion and Consideration (25-28) 
 
G. Section Review of Forms – Discussion and Consideration (29-40) 
 
H. Coalition Report 
 
I. WAMFT Report 
 

1

http://dsps.wi.gov/


J. Items Received After Preparation of the Agenda: 
1) Introductions, Announcements and Recognition 
2) Presentation(s) of Petition(s) for Summary Suspension 
3) Presentation(s) of Proposed Stipulation(s), Final Decision(s) and Order(s) 
4) Presentation of Proposed Final Decision and Order(s) 
5) Informational Item(s) 
6) Division of Legal Services and Compliance (DLSC) Matters 
7) Education and Examination Matters 
8) Credentialing Matters 
9) Approval(s) for Psychometric Testing 
10) Class 1 Hearing(s) 
11) Practice Question(s)/Issues 
12) Legislation/Administrative Rule Matters 
13) Liaison Report(s) (Coalition Report/WAMFT Report) 
14) Speaking Engagement(s), Travel, or Public Relation Request(s) 

 
K. Correspondence and Inquiries Received by Legal Counsel 
 
L. Informational Item(s) 
 
M. Public Comments 
 
CONVENE TO CLOSED SESSION to deliberate on cases following hearing (s. 19.85(1)(a), Stats.; 
consider closing disciplinary investigation with administrative warning (s. 19.85(1)(b), Stats. and 
440.205, Stats., to consider individual histories or disciplinary data (s. 19.85 (1)(f), Stats.; and, to 
confer with legal counsel (s. 19.85(1)(g), Stats.)  
 
N. Review of Administrative Warning: 
 
Q. Deliberation of Proposed Stipulations, Final Decisions and Orders: 
 
O. Deliberation on Issuance of Administrative Warning(s): 
 
P. Deliberation of Items Received After Preparation of the Agenda: 

1) Deliberation on Class 1 Hearings 
2) Application Issues and/or Reviews 
3) Professional Assistance Procedure (PAP) 
4) Monitoring Matters 
5) Proposed Stipulation(s), Final Decision(s) and Order(s) 
6) Administrative Warnings 
7) Review of Administrative Warning 
8) Order(s) Fixing Cost(s)/Matters Related to Costs 
9) Division of Legal Services and Compliance (DLSC) Matters 
10) Proposed Final Decisions and Orders 
11) Petitions for Summary Suspension 
12) Petitions for Re-hearing(s) 
13) Education and Examination Matters 
14) Credential Issues 
15) Appearance(s) from Request(s) Received or Renewed 
16) Motions 

 
Q. Review of Application(s) for Licensure 
 
R. Division of Legal Services and Compliance: 

1) Case Status Report 
2) Case Closing(s) 

2



S. Consulting with Legal Counsel 
 
RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING CLOSED SESSION 
 
Voting on Items Considered or Deliberated on in Closed Session, If Voting is Appropriate 
 
T. DLSC – Signature Collection 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

3



 

 

 

4



 
 

Marriage and Family Therapy Section 
Meeting Minutes 

February 25, 2013 
Page 1 of 4 

MARRIAGE AND FAMILY THERAPY SECTION 
MEETING MINUTES 
FEBRUARY 25, 2013 

 
PRESENT: Arlie Albrecht, Peter Fabian, Alice Hanson-Drew, Linda Pellmann 
 
STAFF: Dan Williams, Executive Director; Yolanda McGowan, Legal Counsel; Matthew 

C. Niehaus, Bureau Assistant; Sharon Henes, Paralegal; and other Department 
Staff 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
Arlie Albrecht, Chair, called the meeting to order at 9:43 a.m.  A quorum of four (4) members 
was present. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOTION: Alice Hanson-Drew moved, seconded by Peter Fabian, to approve the 
February 25, 2013 agenda as published.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF OCTOBER 22, 2012 

 
Amendments to the Minutes: 

• Page 1-6 of the Minutes: Under the page footer, CHANGE “April 10, 2012” to “October 
20, 2012” 

 
MOTION: Peter Fabian moved, seconded by Alice Hanson-Drew, to approve the 

October 20, 2012 minutes as amended.  Motion carried. 
Linda Pellman abstained from voting in the matter of approval of minutes of October 22, 2012. 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 

MOTION: Peter Fabian moved, seconded by Alice Hanson-Drew, that the record 
indicate the election of officers and delegation of liaisons as discussed 
below.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

5



 
 

Marriage and Family Therapy Section 
Meeting Minutes 

February 25, 2013 
Page 2 of 4 

Election of Officers 
 

NOMINATION: Peter Fabian nominated the current slate of officers to continue into 2013.  
Nomination carried by unanimous vote. 

 
Dan Williams called for other nominations three (3) times. 
 
The current slate of officers was elected to continue into 2013. 
 
Appointment of Liaisons 
 
Screening Panel: Peter Fabian, Alice Hanson-Drew 
Credentialing Liaisons: Arlie Albrecht, Linda Pellmann (Peter Fabian & Alice Hanson Drew as 
Alternates) 
DLSC Monitoring Liaison: Arlie Albrecht 
Professional Assistance Procedure (PAP) Liaison(s): Arlie Albrecht 
Continuing Education Liaison: Peter Fabian 
WAMFT Report: Linda Pellmann 
Travel Liaison: Arlie Albrecht 
Coalition Report: Vacant as the Coalition is inactive 
 

MOTION: Peter Fabian moved, seconded by Linda Pellmann, to delegate authority to 
the Credentialing Liaisons to address all issues related to credentialing 
matters.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
MOTION: Linda Pellmann moved, seconded by Alice Hanson-Drew, to adopt the 

Roles and Authorities Delegated to the Monitoring Liaison document.  
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
MOTION: Alice Hanson-Drew moved, seconded by Linda Pellmann that the Section 

delegates authority to the Chair or designated Section member to sign 
documents on behalf of the Section.  In order to carry out duties of the 
Section, the Chair or Section member has the ability to delegate this 
signature authority to the Executive Director for purposes of facilitating the 
completion of assignments during or between meetings.  The Chair or 
Section member delegates the authority to the Executive Director, to sign 
the name of the Chair or Section member on documents as necessary.  
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
MOTION: Peter Fabian moved, seconded by Linda Pellmann, that, in order to 

facilitate the completion of assignments between meetings, the Section 
delegates its authority by order of succession to the Chair, highest ranking 
officer, or longest serving member of the Section, to appoint liaisons to the 
Department where knowledge or experience in the profession is required to 
carry out the duties of the Section in accordance with the law.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 

6



 
 

Marriage and Family Therapy Section 
Meeting Minutes 

February 25, 2013 
Page 3 of 4 

LEGISLATION/ADMINISTRATIVE RULE MATTERS 
 

MOTION: Peter Fabian moved, seconded by Linda Pellmann, to examine in response 
to Executive Order 61 all of MPSW as relevant to MFT Section prior to the 
April 9th, 2013 meeting for purposes of discussion and recommendations at 
that meeting.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
POSITION STATEMENT REVIEW 

 
MOTION: Peter Fabian moved, seconded by Alice Hanson-Drew, to amend the 

Position Statement on “Who Can Supervise Applicants for Licensure” to 
include “or an AAMFT supervisor-in-training” in Item 4.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
MOTION: Alice Hanson-Drew moved, seconded by Linda Pellmann, to request DSPS 

staff amend the MFT Section Website to label “Position Statements” as 
“FAQs/Position Statements”.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
SECTION REVIEW OF SUPERVISORY FORMS 2578, 2579, 2571, AND 2574 

 
MOTION: Peter Fabian moved, seconded by Linda Pellmann, to table the section 

review of supervisory forms 2578, 2579, 2571, and 2574 until the next 
meeting.  The Section requests additional information from DSPS staff.  
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
WAMFT REPORT 

 
MOTION: Peter Fabian moved, seconded by Alice Hanson-Drew, to note that a 

quorum of the Section may be present at the WAMFT conference on April 
14th and 15th, 2013, but no Section business will be conducted.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
CLOSED SESSION 

 
MOTION: Peter Fabian moved, seconded by Alice Hanson-Drew, to convene to 

closed session pursuant to Wisconsin State statutes 19.85(1)(a)(b)(f) and 
(g), to review applications, deliberate on proposed stipulations, deliberate 
on administrative warning; deliberate on hearings or appearances for denial 
of applications; review monitoring cases; review DLSC cases, and consult 
with legal counsel.  Roll Call Vote:  Arlie Albrecht-yes; Peter Fabian-yes; 
Linda Pellmann-yes; and Alice Hanson-Drew-yes.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
The Board convened into Closed Session at 2:05 p.m. 
 

7



 
 

Marriage and Family Therapy Section 
Meeting Minutes 

February 25, 2013 
Page 4 of 4 

CASE CLOSURES 
 

MOTION: Alice Hanson-Drew moved, seconded by Peter Fabian, to close the case 
#12 MFT 010 for Insufficient Evidence (IE).  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
MOTION: Alice Hanson-Drew moved, seconded by Peter Fabian, to close the case 

#12 MFT 013 for Insufficient Evidence (IE).  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Linda Pellmann left the meeting at 3:30 p.m. 
 

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
 

MOTION: Alice Hanson-Drew moved, seconded by Peter Fabian, to reconvene into 
open session.  Motion carried. 

 
The Board reconvened into Open Session at 3:31 p.m. 
 
VOTING ON ITEMS CONSIDERED OR DELIBERATED ON IN CLOSED SESSION IF 

VOTING IS APPROPRIATE 
 

MOTION: Peter Fabian moved, seconded by Alice Hanson-Drew, to affirm all 
motions made in closed session.  Motion carried. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
MOTION: Alice Hanson-Drew moved, seconded by Peter Fabian, to adjourn the 

meeting.  Motion carried. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 3:34 p.m. 

8



State of Wisconsin 
Department of Safety & Professional Services 

Revised 10/12 

 
AGENDA REQUEST FORM 

1) Name and Title of Person Submitting the Request: 
 
Matthew C. Niehaus, Bureau Assistant 

2) Date When Request Submitted: 
 
2/5/2013 
Items will be considered late if submitted after 4:30 p.m. and  less than:  

 10 work days before the meeting for Medical Board 
 14 work days before the meeting for all others 

3) Name of Board, Committee, Council, Sections: 
 
Marriage and Family Therapist Section, Marriage and Family Therapy, Professional Counseling, and 
Social Work Examining Board 
4) Meeting Date: 
 
4/9/2013 

5) Attachments: 
 Yes 
 No 

 

6) How should the item be titled on the agenda page? 
Paperless Initiative 

7) Place Item in: 
 Open Session 
 Closed Session 
 Both 

 

8) Is an appearance before the Board being 
scheduled?   
 
   Yes (Fill out Board Appearance Request) 
  No 

9) Name of Case Advisor(s), if required: 
      

10) Describe the issue and action that should be addressed: 
 
Brief presentation of how Board Members can sign up for SharePoint access as a part of the paperless 
initiative, as well as instructions for using DSPS laptops. 

11)                                                                                  Authorization 
 
Matthew C. Niehaus 
Signature of person making this request                                                                                          Date 
 
 
Supervisor (if required)                                                                                                                       Date 
 
 
Executive Director signature (indicates approval to add post agenda deadline item to agenda)    Date  

Directions for including supporting documents:  
1.  This form should be attached to any documents submitted to the agenda. 
2.  Post Agenda Deadline items must be authorized by a Supervisor and the Policy Development Executive Director. 
3.  If necessary, Provide original documents needing Board Chairperson signature to the Bureau Assistant prior to the start of a 
meeting.  

 
 

9

http://connectus/BoardServices/Shared%20Documents/Agenda%20and%20Appearance%20Forms/Board%20Appearance%20Request%20Form_20121005.doc


How to register for a username/password on http://register.wisconsin.gov .   
 
In order to access the Board SharePoint site, Board Members must obtain a State of WI/DOA username/password from this site 
http://register.wisconsin.gov .  Once registered, Board Members will be provided a DOA credential under the Wisconsin External (wiext) 
domain.   This account is intended to provide users with access to multiple State of Wisconsin web applications, including the DSPS 
SharePoint site. 
 
 
To Begin, use the ‘Self Registration’ link 
 

 
 

Not sure if you already have DOA/State of 
WI account? 
 
Use the ‘Forgot Your Logon ID or Password’ 
link to check 

10

http://register.wisconsin.gov/
http://register.wisconsin.gov/


After accepting the user agreement, complete the ‘Account Creation’ form. 
 
Indicate ‘SharePoint’ under the section entitled, ‘Systems You Will Access’ 
 

 

Please use a login ID of your first 
initial followed by your middle initial 
followed by your last name, as in the 
example to the left. 
 
Remember your logon ID, as you will 
need to provide that to DSPS staff in 
order for you to receive proper access 
rights. 
 
Once you have been granted 
permission to access the Board’s 
website, you should receive an 
automated ‘Welcome to SharePoint’ 
email with a link to the site.  

 

11



 
Above is an example of an agenda packet page, with some features you can access through Adobe Reader. 
A: Bookmarks – When the Bureau Assistant creates the Agenda Packet, it is possible to place in bookmarks for quick reference during meetings.  
You can expand and minimize categories to better enable you to jump from section to section of your agenda here. 
B: Comment – On specially designated .pdf files, it is possible for Adobe Reader to be given comment privileges.  This allows a Board member to 
make comments on documents, as well as edit, highlight, or insert text in suitable files.  Please note, if the file is a scanned copy, it is likely that 
the highlight and text editing features will not be usable.  The comment feature will still work in such an issue. 
C: Annotations & Drawing Markups – These are the different options you can use to mark up your document for your reference.  If you mouse 
over an option, it will give a brief description of what it can do for you.  Feel free to experiment and find out what works best for you! 
D: Comments List – Quickly jump between your comments by selecting them in this list.  Never again will you miss out on a note during a 
discussion with this handy tool. 
E: Page List – No more rifling through papers in order to track down that page someone mentioned!  With this handy bar, you can simply type in 
the page you are looking for, hit enter, and Adobe Reader will take you directly to the page. 
F: Zoom – Having trouble reading something?  You can zoom in and out on a document with this bar.  The plus and minus signs to the left can be 
used to make quick adjustments as well. 

12



In order to log into the SharePoint site, you will need to go to 

https://webapps.wi.gov/sites/dsps/boards/ 

When you load this page, you should receive a prompt to enter your User name and password. Your 

User name is the Logon ID from when you created your Wisconsin Extension account. In order to tell 

SharePoint where to find your account, you will need to place wiext\ in front of your username at this 

login prompt. If you are logging in from a secure location, you can check the box to allow SharePoint to 

remember your username and password. 

 

If you have forgotten your login information or password, there is a link at the bottom of 

http://register.wisconsin.gov that can be used to recover your Login ID and Password. 

13

https://webapps.wi.gov/sites/dsps/boards/
http://register.wisconsin.gov/


Once you enter your information successfully, you will be taken to the SharePoint launch page. The 

launch page also contains useful Board member information on things like open meetings law, paperless 

meeting resources, and a wide array of other information. From this site, you can select your Board and 

then you will be taken to the Board site. Your section is listed underneath the Joint Board. 

 

There are several sections of this site that will be of interest to Board members.  If you examine the left 

hand side of the screen when you get to your Board’s site, you will see a navigation panel that lists every 

library and list you have permission to access. Please take a moment to familiarize yourself with the look 

of the site. Playing around is highly encouraged. 

14



The bar to the side of the left side of the page has several options on it that 

should be of interest to Board members. Many areas of the site are currently 

in development. 

Introduction & Overview Materials: This library contains several documents 

relevant to Board business. 

Board Materials: This library contains individual agenda items, as well as a 

copy of the completed agenda. The library is divided into subfolders by 

meeting. 

Legal Services and Compliance/Credentialing: These libraries will be used by 

DLSC and Credentialing personnel to provide documents relevant to the 

respective areas. These sections of the site are currently in development. 

Board Member Folders: This library contains a folder for each Board member. 

These folders are only visible to the Board member who they correspond to 

and are configured to allow Board members to upload any documents they wish. This folder will also 

contain a copy of the meeting agenda which Board members will be able to make comments in. 

Site Pages: This section is currently in development 

Calendar: A calendar of Board events. This is currently in development. 

Board Officers & Liaisons: This list contains a directory of Board officers and liaisons. This directory will 

be updated prior to the meeting. 

15



 

Selecting Board Materials will give you access to a list of meetings by date. Selecting the meeting date 

(under the “name” category) from this list will bring you to the items for that meeting date. 

 

Inside of a meeting date folder, you can view several subfolders, each of which will hold individual 

agenda items. These items will be uploaded over the course of the month for Board members to review. 

8 business days before the meeting date, the Board’s Bureau Assistant will begin preparing an agenda 

packet, which will be placed in the Agenda Packet folder, as well as each individual user’s folder in Board 

Member Folders. This document will be opened to comments by Board members. Any items added after 

the agenda deadline will also have comment-enabled copies added to individual Board member folders. 

16



When you select Board Member Folders, you will be brought to a page with a folder with your name on 

it. If you open this folder, you will be taken into your folder. You have elevated permissions inside of 

your folder, which will give you the ability to create, upload, edit, and save files. 

 

 

If you click on the documents link at the top of the page, you will be able to view a new set of options. 

Of particular interest are New Document and Upload Document. If you create a new document, 

SharePoint will create a new word file. Upload Document can be used to upload your own files, such as 

a copy of the agenda you have made comments in. 

17



When you upload a document, you will be prompted with the following window. Clicking Browse will let 

you navigate to a location on your computer to upload the file. The destination folder option should 

automatically fill in with your folder’s name. You will not want to change this. You can enter versioning 

comments if you desire to track any changes you made between different copies of files that you 

upload. 

 

18



Another useful feature you can get out of SharePoint is the ability to browse the site as an Explorer 

window. If you go into the Library tab and select Open with Explorer, you can open up a regular 

Windows Explorer window, through which you can edit files without needing to interface directly with 

the site. 

 

You can take this a step further and create a desktop shortcut to access your Board Member folder, 

should you so desire. In an open Explorer window, if you click the “Up” button, you can go back to the 

root folder for the Board Member Submissions, where you can then right click on your folder and create 

a shortcut (which will be sent to your desktop.) You can do this with other libraries in SharePoint as well, 

should you so desire. 

 

19



If you create a shortcut to your desktop, you can easily access and edit your agenda. If you open Adobe 

Reader, and navigate to the shortcut you created on your desktop, you will be able to open your folder. 

You may be prompted to enter your password again. 

 

Once you open the file, you will receive a prompt about checking the file out. Through SharePoint, you 

will need to check out a file in order to make changes to it. Click on Check Out & Open and you will be 

able to insert whatever comments you desire into the document. 

 

20



When you have made your comments to your document, you will need to check it back in so your 

comments will save. If you open the file menu and select SharePoint Server, you will be able to check 

the agenda packet back in, saving your changes to the document back to the SharePoint site. 

 

When you click on Check In, you will get the following window. You can enter version comments to track 

what changes you made in this version, should you so desire. Once you hit OK, the file will be saved back 

on SharePoint. If you check the Keep the document checked out after checking in this version, you will 

be able to continue making changes to the document after checking it in. 

 

21



 

 

 

22



State of Wisconsin 
Department of Safety & Professional Services 

 
 

AGENDA REQUEST FORM 
1) Name and Title of Person Submitting the Request: 
 
Dan Williams 

2) Date When Request Submitted: 
3/20/13 
Items will be considered late if submitted after 4:30 p.m. and  less than:  

 10 work days before the meeting for Medical Board 
 14 work days before the meeting for all others 

3) Name of Board, Committee, Council, Sections: 
 
MFT Section 
4) Meeting Date: 
 
4/9/13 

5) Attachments: 
 Yes 
 No 

 

6) How should the item be titled on the agenda page? 
 
Executive Order 61 – Discussion and Consideration 

7) Place Item in: 
 Open Session 
 Closed Session 
 Both 

 

8) Is an appearance before the Board being 
scheduled?  If yes, who is appearing? 

  Yes by  
 No 

9) Name of Case Advisor(s), if required: 
 
N/A 

10) Describe the issue and action that should be addressed: 
 
From the last meeting: 
 

LEGISLATION/ADMINISTRATIVE RULE MATTERS 
 

MOTION: Peter Fabian moved, seconded by Linda Pellmann, to examine in response to 
Executive Order 61 all of MPSW as relevant to MFT Section prior to the April 
9th, 2013 meeting for purposes of discussion and recommendations at that 
meeting.  Motion carried unanimously. 

•  

11)                                                                                  Authorization 
 
 
Signature of person making this request                                                                                          Date 
 
 
Supervisor (if required)                                                                                                                       Date 
 
 
Executive Director signature (indicates approval to add post agenda deadline item to agenda)    Date  
Directions for including supporting documents:  
1.  This form should be attached to any documents submitted to the agenda. 
2.  Post Agenda Deadline items must be authorized by a Supervisor and the Board Services Bureau Director. 
3.  If necessary, Provide original documents needing Board Chairperson signature to the Executive Assistant prior to the start of 
a meeting.  

 
 

23



 

 

 

24



State of Wisconsin 
Department of Safety & Professional Services 

 
 

AGENDA REQUEST FORM 
1) Name and Title of Person Submitting the Request: 
 
Dan Williams 

2) Date When Request Submitted: 
3/13/13 
Items will be considered late if submitted after 4:30 p.m. and  less than:  

 10 work days before the meeting for Medical Board 
 14 work days before the meeting for all others 

3) Name of Board, Committee, Council, Sections: 
Marriage & Family Therapists Section, MPSW Jt. Board 

4) Meeting Date: 
 
4/9/13 

5) Attachments: 
 Yes 
 No 

 

6) How should the item be titled on the agenda page? 
 
Position Statements – discussion and consideration 

7) Place Item in: 
 Open Session 
 Closed Session 
 Both 

 

8) Is an appearance before the Board being 
scheduled?  If yes, who is appearing? 

  Yes by  
 No 

9) Name of Case Advisor(s), if required: 
 
N/A 

10) Describe the issue and action that should be addressed: 
 
In 2013 the Board will review the Position Statements currently on the DSPS website 
(MFT page) to determine whether they should remain, be revised, or pulled entirely.  
These statements were transferred over from the old website in November-2012.   
 
 

11)                                                                                  Authorization 
 
 
Signature of person making this request                                                                                          Date 
 
 
Supervisor (if required)                                                                                                                       Date 
 
 
Executive Director signature (indicates approval to add post agenda deadline item to agenda)    Date  
Directions for including supporting documents:  
1.  This form should be attached to any documents submitted to the agenda. 
2.  Post Agenda Deadline items must be authorized by a Supervisor and the Board Services Bureau Director. 
3.  If necessary, Provide original documents needing Board Chairperson signature to the Executive Assistant prior to the start of 
a meeting.  

 
 

25



Marriage and Family Therapist  

The following are answers to some frequently asked questions received by the Department of Safety and Professional 
Services. These questions and answers are general in nature and are provided as a public service. Licensees and 
applicants with specific questions should refer to the Wisconsin statutes and administrative code provisions which govern 
their profession. In any instance in which an answer may differ from the provisions of the statutes and administrative code 
provisions, the latter will govern. 

 
1.     HOW DOES A LMFT LICENSE COMPARE TO OTHER MENTAL HEALTH LICENSURES 

OFFERED IN WISCONSIN? 
LMFT is a specialized licensure in marriage and family therapy that requires training 
and experience with families and couples. See s. 457.01, Stats for definitions of each 
of the types of licensure.  

  

 

2.     HOW MANY HOURS OF SUPERVISED EXPERIENCE DO APPLICANTS NEED? 
The minimum requirements are: 3000 hours of marriage and family therapy practice in 
no less than 2 years, including at least 1000 hours of face to face client contact with 1 
hour of MFT supervision for every 10 hours of client contact. This is outlined in Ch 
MPSW 16.03, Wis Admin Code.  

  

 

3.     WHICH EXAM DOES THE STATE BOARD REQUIRE FOR LICENSURE? THIS SHOULD GO 
UNDER EDUCATION (FAQS FOR SECTION?) 

The Association of Marital and Family Therapy Regulatory Boards (AMFTRB) 
developed and owns the exam which Wisconsin and a majority of other states require 
for licensure. The applicant is also required to successfully complete the examination 
of the Wisconsin Statutes and rules. 

There are three scheduled National Examination in Marital and Family Therapy 
testing windows each year. You can locate the dates at 
http://www.amftrb.org/examdate.cfm 

Additional information about examinations can be found in Ch MPSW 18, Wis Admin 
Code and s. 457.10(4), Stats.  

  

 

4.     ARE THERE EXAMINATION STUDY MATERIALS OR WORKSHOPS AVAILABLE? THIS 
SHOULD BE REMOVED OR MOVED TO EDUCATION. 

Exam Prep materials, classes, and workshops are available from private agencies 
and training institutions. However, neither the Department nor the Board is in a 
position to endorse any particular training provider. 

  

 

5.     WHO CAN SUPERVISE APPLICANTS FOR LICENSURE? 

A person who meets one of the following requirements as stipulated by Ch MPSW 
16.05, Wis Admin Code: 

(1) A LMFT who holds a doctorate degree in Marriage and Family Therapy.  
(2) A LMFT who has engaged in the equivalent of 5 years full-time MFT practice.  
(3) A psychiatrist or psychologist licensed in Wisconsin.  
(4) An AAMFT approved supervisor.  

 

26

http://www.legis.state.wi.us/statutes/Stat0457.pdf
http://www.legis.state.wi.us/rsb/code/mpsw/mpsw016.pdf
http://www.amftrb.org/examdate.cfm
http://www.legis.state.wi.us/rsb/code/mpsw/mpsw018.pdf
http://www.legis.state.wi.us/statutes/Stat0457.pdf
http://www.legis.state.wi.us/rsb/code/mpsw/mpsw016.pdf
http://www.legis.state.wi.us/rsb/code/mpsw/mpsw016.pdf


(5) A person who is approved in advance by the MFT Section. 

  
6.     WHAT DOES THE BOARD LOOK FOR WHEN APPROVING SUPERVISORS WHO ARE 

NOT LMFTS? 

All requests for approval of supervisors are considered on a case-by-case basis.  
Approval must be requested and received before starting supervision. 

  

 

7.     ARE LMFTS REQUIRED TO CARRY MALPRACTICE INSURANCE? 

Yes. Clinical social workers, MFT's, and professional counselors are required to 
have professional liability insurance. Exceptions exist for licensees employed in 
federal, state or local governmental agencies who only work for those agencies. 
These requirements are outlined in s. 457.24, Stat. and s. MPSW 1.10, Wis. Admin 
code. 

  

 

8.     CAN I GET A LICENSE IF I'VE BEEN CONVICTED OF A CRIME? 

There is no simple answer to this question. 

  

All professions are subject to the state law (sections 111.321, 111.322 and 111.335, 
Stats.) that prohibits discrimination against applicants based on conviction records 
unless convictions are substantially related to the practice of the profession. The 
phrase “substantially related” is interpreted broadly in order to protect the public, 
especially in health service professions where licensees interact with vulnerable 
populations, so convictions that involved harm to others or that suggest an impaired 
ability to perform licensed duties will probably be considered to be substantially 
related to the practice of the profession. 

It is common for a board to ask the applicant to appear in person, to explain the 
circumstances of his or her conviction record and to discuss the person's 
development since the offense(s). Once it evaluates all the information submitted by 
the applicant, including any in-person interview, the board then has wide discretion to 
grant or deny the application. This is why it's very difficult to provide a simple answer 
to this question. Being denied for a license would not prevent a person from applying 
again later. 

An additional consideration is that, even though an applicant may be granted a 
license, certain employment opportunities may be unavailable to persons with criminal 
records. For example, under the “caregiver law”, some convictions require post-
conviction DHS Rehabilitation Review prior to working in a DHS licensed facility.  

  

 

9.     WHAT OBLIGATIONS ARE THERE TO REPORT UNPROFESSIONAL CONDUCT BY 
ANOTHER MEMBER OF MY OWN PROFESSION?  

There is no ethics rule that requires you to report unprofessional conduct by another 
member of your profession. However, you should be aware of the following:  

 

27

http://www.legis.state.wi.us/statutes/Stat0457.pdf
http://www.legis.state.wi.us/rsb/code/mpsw/mpsw001.pdf


1. If you have reasonable cause to suspect that a child you have seen in the course 
of your professional duties has been abused or neglected, you have an obligation to 
report it. (See section 48.981 of the Statutes for details.)  

2. If you have reasonable cause to suspect that a client you have seen in the course 
of your professional duties is a victim of sexual contact by a therapist, you must ask 
the client if s/he wants you to report it. (See section 940.22 of the Statutes for 
details.)  

3. Any organization or individual that employs a social worker, marriage and family 
therapist, or professional counselor must report to the examining board any adverse 
or disciplinary action that terminates, suspends or restricts the credential-holder's 
employment. Per s. MPSW 20.02(19), Wis. Admin code any violation of s. 457, Stat. 
is considered unprofessional conduct. Reporting requirements of supervisors and 
agencies are outlined in s. 457.25, Stat. See [White Paper- create from memo??] for 
more information on the duty to report.  

4. Even though you are not obligated to report unprofessional conduct by another, 
you are encouraged to report it by a grant of civil immunity: “any person who in good 
faith ... provides the department or any examining board ... with advice or 
information on a matter relating to the regulation of a person holding a credential is 
immune from civil liability”. (See section 440.042(2) of the Statutes for details.) 

  
10.     DOES THE VENDORSHIP, ACT 28 LAW CHANGE THE REQUIREMENTS FOR AODA 

LICENSING REQUIREMENTS FOR MENTAL HEALTH THERAPISTS? 
No. The bill addresses the issue of providing services outside of a DHS clinic. It does 
not alter the licensure requirements for providing AODA services.  

  

 

11.     HOW WILL THE VENDORSHIP ACT 28 LAW AFFECT MY PRACTICE? 
The law imposes a new requirement for providers to notify their clients of the 
procedures to resolve a grievance regarding the provision of services. DHS has 
offered some guidance on forms and policies regarding these changes, click here to 
access this information.  
 
As for the billing aspect of vendorship, this is not the direct responsibility of the Board 
to regulate or enforce, therefore it is suggested that for further information about the 
law you contact your professional membership organization. NASW WI has also 
provided a brief FAQ on this law, which can be accessed here. (add link once White 
Paper is in system) 

  

 

12.     CAN LICENSEES TREAT AODA CLIENTS? 
Stat. 457.02(5m) disallows licensed mental health professionals (social workers, 
marriage and family therapists, and professional counselors) from providing primary 
treatment of those with a diagnosis of substance dependency or abuse without an 
AODA certification as stipulated in Stat. 440.88 or by meeting the qualifications of an 
AODA specialty as required by the board under MPSW 1.09, Wis. Admin Code.   

 

 

28

http://www.legis.state.wi.us/statutes/Stat0048.pdf
http://www.legis.state.wi.us/statutes/Stat0940.pdf
http://www.legis.state.wi.us/rsb/code/mpsw/mpsw020.pdf
http://www.legis.state.wi.us/statutes/Stat0457.pdf
http://www.legis.state.wi.us/statutes/Stat0440.pdf
http://www.wafca.org/DHS35.htm
http://www.legis.state.wi.us/statutes/Stat0457.pdf
http://www.legis.state.wi.us/statutes/Stat0440.pdf
http://www.legis.state.wi.us/rsb/code/mpsw/mpsw001.pdf


State of Wisconsin 
Department of Safety & Professional Services 

 
 

AGENDA REQUEST FORM 
1) Name and Title of Person Submitting the Request: 
 
Dan Williams 

2) Date When Request Submitted: 
3/27/13 
Items will be considered late if submitted after 4:30 p.m. and  less than:  

 10 work days before the meeting for Medical Board 
 14 work days before the meeting for all others 

3) Name of Board, Committee, Council, Sections: 
 
MFT Section 
4) Meeting Date: 
 
4/9/13 

5) Attachments: 
 Yes 
 No 

 

6) How should the item be titled on the agenda page? 
 
Section application licensure forms – Discussion and 
Consideration 

7) Place Item in: 
 Open Session 
 Closed Session 
 Both 

 

8) Is an appearance before the Board being 
scheduled?  If yes, who is appearing? 

  Yes by  
 No 

9) Name of Case Advisor(s), if required: 
 
N/A 

10) Describe the issue and action that should be addressed: 
 
Section intends to consider revision of forms 1973, 2238, 2574.  This listing of forms to be 
reviewed is not all-inclusive and may lead to a discussion of other application forms as 
needed.   
 

11)                                                                                  Authorization 
 
 
Signature of person making this request                                                                                          Date 
 
 
Supervisor (if required)                                                                                                                       Date 
 
 
Executive Director signature (indicates approval to add post agenda deadline item to agenda)    Date  
Directions for including supporting documents:  
1.  This form should be attached to any documents submitted to the agenda. 
2.  Post Agenda Deadline items must be authorized by a Supervisor and the Board Services Bureau Director. 
3.  If necessary, Provide original documents needing Board Chairperson signature to the Executive Assistant prior to the start of 
a meeting.  

 
 

29



Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services 
 Mail To: P.O. Box 8935 1400 E. Washington Avenue 
 Madison, WI  53708-8935 Madison, WI  53703 
 FAX #: (608) 261-7083 E-Mail: web@dsps.wi.gov 
 Phone #: (608) 266-2112 Website: http://dsps.wi.gov 

MARRIAGE AND FAMILY THERAPY, PROFESSIONAL COUNSELING, AND 
SOCIAL WORK EXAMINING BOARD 

MARRIAGE AND FAMILY THERAPIST LICENSE/TRAINING LICENSE APPLICATION 

Under Wisconsin law, the Department must deny your application if you are liable for delinquent state taxes or child support (sec. 440.12, Stats.). 

PLEASE TYPE OR PRINT IN INK Your name and address are available to the public. 
Check box to withhold street address/PO Box number from lists of 10 or more credential holders (Wis. Stat. 
§ 440.14) 

Last Name First Name MI Former / Maiden Name(s) 

Your Street Address (number, street, city, state, zip) 

Mail To Address (if different) 

Date of Birth 
  ___________   ___________   ____________ 
 month day year 

Daytime Telephone Number 
 (              )  ____________  -  ________________________  

Ethnic/gender status Sex:  M Ethnic:  White, not of Hispanic origin  American Indian or Alaskan 
information is optional.  F  Black, not of Hispanic origin  Asian or Pacific Islander 
  Hispanic  Other 
 

PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION (schools, locations, degrees and date of graduation) 
  DATE OF 

SCHOOL LOCATION DEGREE GRADUATION (M/D/Y)
    
    
    

 Check box and “Training License” below if you wish to apply for an MFT training license. 
APPLICATION FEES: Make one check payable to DSPS for the total DSPS 

fee and attach to this application. 
 ____  Training License 

$ 75.00 Initial Credential Fee (required) 

Training License Optional Fees  (If you are planning to take the 
AMFTRB and/or Wisconsin Statutes and Rules exam at this time, 
include appropriate fee with initial credentialing fee listed above.) 

 ____  $ 75.00 Wisconsin Statute and Rule Exam Fee 
 ____  $ 15.00 AMFTRB Exam Contract Fee 

_____ MFT Licensure 
$ 75.00 Initial Credential Fee 
$ 75.00 Wisconsin Statute and Rule Exam Fee 
$ 15.00 AMFTRB Exam Contract Fee 
$165.00 Total Fee Attached 

_____ Temporary License 
$ 10.00 Temporary License Fee 
$ 75.00 Wisconsin Statute and Rule Exam Fee (This fee is not required 

if paid with the MFT Licensure option above.) 
$ 85.00 Total Fee Attached 

_____ Reciprocity:  (Individuals who hold a credential in another state or 
jurisdiction) 
$170.00 Reciprocal Initial Credential Fee 
$ 75.00 Wisconsin Statute and Rule Exam Fee 
$245.00 Total Fee Attached 

 
 
#1973 (Rev. 9/12) 
Ch. 457, Stats. 

For Receipting Use Only 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 6 

Committed to Equal Opportunity in Employment and Licensing 30



Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services 
 
 
APPLICATION TO BE REVIEWED ACCORDING TO THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA:  (check one) 

 I hold a master’s or doctoral degree or a post masters certificate in marriage and family therapy from a program accredited by 
the Commission on Accreditation for Marriage and Family Therapy Education.  (Forward “Marriage and Family Therapists 
Certificate of Professional Education” (Form # 1972) in this package.) 

 I hold a master’s or doctoral degree in a field substantially equivalent to marital and family therapy and have successfully 
completed and received academic credit for course work at an accredited institution or a regionally accredited college or 
university, which meets the criteria stated in MPSW 16.02(1), and (2).  (Must complete “Marriage and Family Therapist 
Curriculum Requirements” (Form # 2238) in this package.  Submit transcripts and course descriptions.) 

 I have been admitted to clinical membership in the American Association for Marriage and Family Therapy and wish to be 
considered for licensure upon the section’s review of my clinical membership documentation which will be submitted directly 
to the section from AAMFT.  (It is your responsibility to contact AAMFT and request them to forward the verification form.)  

 I will submit satisfactory proof to the marriage and family therapist section that I am enrolled or will be enrolled in a 
post-graduate institute for marriage and family therapy that is approved by the commission on accreditation for marriage and 
family therapy education of the American Association for Marriage and Family Therapy or by the marriage and family 
therapist section. 

 I hold a graduate degree in a mental health field approved by the marriage and family therapist section and I am enrolled or 
will be enrolled in a master’s or doctoral degree program in marriage and family therapy accredited by the commission on 
accreditation for marriage and family therapy education or by the marriage and family therapist section. 

 
 
IF YOU ARE CREDENTIALED AS A MARRIAGE AND FAMILY THERAPIST ELSEWHERE: 

I am credentialed in the following states or territories: 

  __________________________________________________________________________________________  

  __________________________________________________________________________________________  

  __________________________________________________________________________________________  

You are required to have each state board or territory of the United States in which you have ever been credentialed 
submit verification (form #2572) to the Marriage and Family Therapy Section.  The verification must state your date of 
birth, credential number, date of issuance, and a statement regarding disciplinary actions.  If your credential was obtained 
without having taken a national exam or its equivalent, you may not be eligible for licensure by reciprocity in Wisconsin. 

 

PLEASE CHECK ONE: 
 ______  I need to take the AMFTRB Examination. 
 
 ______  I have taken and passed the AMFTRB Examination. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 2 of 6 

31



Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services 
 
 
ANSWER THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS:  (Attach additional sheets if necessary) 
  YES NO  
1. Have you ever surrendered, resigned, cancelled or been denied a professional license or other 

credential in Wisconsin or any other jurisdiction?  If yes, give details on an attached sheet, 
including the name of the profession and the agency. 

   

2. Have you ever failed to pass any state board examination, national board examination, or 
AMFTRB examination?  If yes, give details on an attached sheet.    

3. Has any licensing or other credentialing agency ever taken any disciplinary action against you, 
including but not limited to, any warning, reprimand, suspension, probation, limitation, 
revocation?  If yes, attach a sheet providing details about the action, including the name of the 
credentialing agency and date of action. 

   

4. Is disciplinary action pending against you in any jurisdiction?  If yes, attach a sheet providing 
details about pending action, including the name of the agency and status of action.    

5. Do you have any felony or misdemeanor charges pending against you?  If yes, attach a sheet 
providing details about the pending charge, copy of the court documents and status of the charge.  
(Please do not give details on minor traffic charges, but do include information relating to Driving 
While Intoxicated (DWI) charges.) 

   

6. Have you ever been convicted of a misdemeanor or a felony?  If yes, attach a sheet providing 
details about the crime, including date of conviction, penalty and a copy of the court documents.  
(Please do not give details on minor traffic convictions, but do include information relating to 
Driving While Intoxicated (DWI) charges.) 

   

7. Are you incarcerated, on probation or on parole for any conviction?  If applicable, attach a sheet 
providing details including the terms of incarceration and a copy of a report from your probation 
or parole officer. 

   

8. Have any suits or claims ever been filed against you as a result of professional services?  If yes, 
submit a copy of the claim or suit and a copy of the final settlement or disposition.    

9. Are you registered or licensed in any other profession(s)?  If yes, state what profession(s) and in 
what states(s).    

10. Have you ever been credentialed under any other name(s)?  If yes, state name(s) credentialed under.    
For the purposes of these questions, the following phrases or words have the following meanings: 

"Ability to practice marriage and family therapy" is to be construed to include all of the following: 
1. The cognitive capacity to make appropriate diagnoses and exercise reasoned marriage and family therapy 

judgments and to learn and keep abreast of marriage and family therapy developments; and 

2. The ability to communicate those judgments and marriage and family therapy information to clients and other 
health care providers, with or without the use of aids or devices, such as voice amplifiers; and 

3. The physical capability to perform marriage and family therapy tasks such as examination and treatment 
procedures, with or without the use of aids or devices, such as corrective lenses or hearing aids. 

"Medical condition" includes physiological, mental or psychological conditions or disorders, such as, but not 
limited to orthopedic, visual, speech, and hearing impairments, cerebral palsy, epilepsy, muscular dystrophy, multiple 
sclerosis, cancer, heart disease, diabetes, mental retardation, emotional or mental illness, specific learning disabilities, 
HIV disease, tuberculosis, drug addiction and alcoholism. 

"Chemical substances" is to be construed to include alcohol, drugs or medications, including those taken pursuant 
to a valid prescription for legitimate medical purposes and in accordance with the prescriber's direction, as well as 
those used illegally. 

Page 3 of 6 32



Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services 
 
 

"Currently" does not mean on the day of, or even in the weeks or months preceding the completion of this 
application.  Rather, it means recently enough so that the use of drugs may have an ongoing impact on one's 
functioning as a licensee, or within the past two years. 

"Illegal use of controlled dangerous substances" means the use of controlled dangerous substances obtained 
illegally (e.g. heroin or cocaine) as well as the use of controlled dangerous substances which are not obtained pursuant 
to a valid prescription or not taken in accordance with the directions of a licensed health care practitioner. 

  YES NO 

11. Do you have a medical condition which in any way impairs or limits your ability to practice 
marriage and family therapy with reasonable skill and safety?  If yes, please explain.    

12. Does your use of chemical substance(s) in any way impair or limit your ability to practice 
marriage and family therapy with reasonable skill and safety?  If yes, please explain.    

13. Are the limitations or impairments caused by your medical condition reduced or ameliorated 
because you receive ongoing treatment (with or without medications) or participate in a 
monitoring program?  If yes, please explain. 

   

14. Are the limitations or impairments caused by your medical condition reduced or ameliorated 
because of the field of practice, the setting or the manner in which you have chosen to practice?  
If yes, please explain. 

   

15. Have you ever been diagnosed as having or have you ever been treated for pedophilia, 
exhibitionism or voyeurism?  If yes, please explain.    

16. Are you currently engaged in the illegal use of controlled dangerous substances?  
17. If yes, are you currently participating in a supervised rehabilitation program or professional 

assistance program which monitors you in order to assure that you are not engaging in the illegal 
use of controlled dangerous substances?  If yes, please explain. 

   

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION OF LEGAL STATUS. 
 

I declare under penalty of law that I am (check one): 

 ______ a citizen or national of the United States, or 

 ______ a qualified alien or nonimmigrant lawfully present in the United States who is eligible to receive this 
professional license or credential as defined in the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunities 
Reconciliation Act of 1996, as codified in 8 U.S.C. §1601 et. seq. (PRWORA).  For questions concerning 
PRWORA status, please contact the U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services in the Department of 
Homeland Security at 1-800-375-5283 or online at http://www.uscis.gov.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 6 
33



Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services 
 
 
ALL APPLICANTS MUST COMPLETE THIS SECTION 

AFFIDAVIT OF APPLICANT 
(Sign and date in the presence of a notary) 

 I declare that I am the person referred to on this application and that all answers set forth are each and all 
strictly true in every respect.  I understand that failure to provide requested information, making any 
materially false statement and/or giving any materially false information in connection with my application 
for a credential or for renewal or reinstatement of a credential may result in credential application processing 
delays; denial, revocation, suspension or limitation of my credential; or any combination thereof; or such 
other penalties as may be provided by law.  I further understand that if I am issued a credential, or renewal or 
reinstatement thereof, failure to comply with the statutes and/or administrative code provisions of the 
licensing authority will be cause for disciplinary action. 

 
 
 
 
 __________________________________________________________   ________________________________  
 Signature of Applicant Date 
 
 
 
 State of  ____________  County of  _________________  

 Subscribed and sworn to before this ___________ day of 

_______________________________________, 20_____, by  ______________________________________________  
 (Applicant name) 

 ______________________________________________  
 Signature of Notary Public S E A L 

 ______________________________________________  
 Date Commission Expires 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 5 of 6 

34



Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services 
 
 
SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER.  Your social security number (or employer identification number if you are 
applying as a business entity) must be submitted with your application on this form.  If you do not have a social 
security number you must submit a statement under oath or affirmation.  If your social security number or a 
statement is not provided, your application will be denied.1  A form for submitting a statement that you do not 
have a social security number is available from the department. 

(Please Print) 

__________________________________________________________________ 
First Name Middle Initial Last Name 

__________________________________________________________________ 
 Profession 

Date of Birth  _________   ___________  ____________ 
 month day year 
 
 

  -    -   
Social Security Number or FEIN 

The Department may not disclose the social security number collected above except to the Department of 
Workforce Development for purposes of administering the child and spousal support program,2 to the 
Department of Revenue for the purpose of determining whether you are liable for delinquent taxes,3 and to the 
federal Healthcare Integrity and Protection Data Bank for the purpose of reporting adverse actions against 
health care practitioners.4 

 
EMAIL ADDRESS: 
Do you have an email address?  Yes  No 

If yes, this field is required to receive your application status electronically.  Your email address must be clearly legible 
with the correct case sensitive information. 

EMAIL ADDRESS:  Submit your email address in the spaces provided below or attach a printer copy. 

                              

 
 
If no, your checklist will be sent by first class mail. 

 
 
____________________________ 
1 Section 440.03 (11m), Wis. Stats. 3 Section 440.12, Wis. Stats. 
2 Sections 49.22, and 440.13, Wis. Stats. 4 Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996 

This form is authorized by secs. 440.12 and 440.14, Wis. Stats.  Making a false statement in connection with 
this application may result in revocation or denial. 
 
 
 Page 6 of 6 

35



 

 

 

36



Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services 
 Mail To: P.O. Box 8935 1400 E. Washington Avenue 
 Madison, WI  53708-8935 Madison, WI  53703 
 FAX #: (608) 261-7083 E-Mail: web@dsps.wi.gov 
 Phone #: (608) 266-2112 Website: http://dsps.wi.gov 

MARRIAGE AND FAMILY THERAPY, PROFESSIONAL COUNSELING, AND 
SOCIAL WORK EXAMINING BOARD 

MARRIAGE AND FAMILY THERAPIST CURRICULUM REQUIREMENTS 

Applicants who have neither graduated from a program accredited by the Commission on Accreditation for 
Marriage and Family Therapy Education, nor are making application based on clinical membership in the 
American Association of Marriage and Family Therapists, must complete this page.  To be equivalent to a 
degree in Marriage and Family Therapy, a course of study must include a total of 9 courses from general topic 
areas A, B, & C, 1 course apiece from general topic areas D & E, and a clinical practicum including at least 
300 client contact hours.  For a more detailed description of the equivalency requirement, see section 
MPSW 16.02 of the Wisconsin Administrative Code.  A code book may be ordered from the department, or the 
rules may be reviewed online at www.legis.state.wi.us/rsb/code/mpsw/mpsw016.pdf. 

 
A. Marital and Family Studies – At least 2 courses for total of either 6 semester or 8 quarter credits. 

 
Institution 

Course 
No. 

Course Title 
(in full) 

Dates 
From/To 

Credit or  Contact 
Hours        Hours 

1)      

2)      

3)      

 
B. Marital and Family Therapy - At least  2 courses for total of either 6 semester or 8 quarter credits. 

 
Institution 

Course 
No. 

Course Title 
(in full) 

Dates 
From/To 

Credit or  Contact 
Hours        Hours 

1)      

2)      

3)      

 
C. Human Development - At least  2 courses for total of either 6 semester or 8 quarter credits. 

 
Institution 

Course 
No. 

Course Title 
(in full) 

Dates 
From/To 

Credit or  Contact 
Hours        Hours 

1)      

2)      

3)      
 
 
 
 
#2238 (Rev. 9/12) 
Ch. 457, Stats. Page 1 of 2 

Committed to Equal Opportunity in Employment and Licensing 
37



Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services 
 
 
 
D. Professional Studies - At least 1 course of 3 semester or 4 quarter credits. 

 
Institution 

Course 
No. 

Course Title 
(in full) 

Dates 
From/To 

Credit or  Contact 
Hours        Hours 

1)      

2)      

3)      

 
E. Research - At least 1 course of 3 semester or 4 quarter credits. 

 
Institution 

Course 
No. 

Course Title 
(in full) 

Dates 
From/To 

Credit or  Contact 
Hours        Hours 

1)      

2)      

3)      

 
F. Clinical Practicum - At least 300 hours of client contact. 

 
Educational Institution 

(not practicum site) 

 
Course 

No. 

 
 

Supervisor(s) 

 
Dates 

From/To 

Total Contact 
(not credit) 

Hrs. of Practicum 
1)      

2)      

3)      
 
 
 
NOTES: 
The Section must receive official transcripts which show the appropriate coursework, directly from the 
institution(s).  (College course descriptions or syllabi for each course listed on the coursework grid must also be 
provided.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 2 of 2 

38



Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services 
 Mail To: P.O. Box 8935 1400 E. Washington Avenue 
 Madison, WI  53708-8935 Madison, WI  53703 
 FAX #: (608) 261-7083 E-Mail: web@dsps 
 Phone #: (608) 266-2112 Website: http://dsps.wi.gov 

MARRIAGE AND FAMILY THERAPY, PROFESSIONAL COUNSELING, AND 
SOCIAL WORK EXAMINING BOARD 

MARRIAGE AND FAMILY THERAPIST SUPERVISED PRACTICE EXPERIENCE 
(To be completed following completion of supervised practice.) 

 
SUPERVISOR:  Please read thoroughly and carefully, and complete both pages of this form. 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Name of Applicant under Supervision 

The applicant must complete at least 3000 hours of Marriage and Family Therapy practice in no less than 
2 years, including at least 1000 hours of face-to-face client contact.  The person whose practice is being 
supervised shall receive a minimum of one hour of face-to-face supervision for each 10 hours of client contact.  
Practice of Marriage and Family Therapy which occurs as part of the requirements for obtaining a master’s or 
doctorate degree in Marriage and Family Therapy or a substantially related field, shall not be considered to 
fulfill any part of the post-graduate supervised practice requirement. 

Supervision of a period of Marriage and Family Therapy practice may be exercised by one of the following: 

Supervisor:  Please identify which of the following applies to you: 

 An individual licensed as a Marriage and Family Therapist, who has received a doctorate degree in 
Marriage and Family Therapy. 

 An individual licensed as a Marriage and Family Therapist, who has engaged in the equivalent of 5 post 
master’s years of full-time Marriage and Family Therapy. 

 A psychiatrist or psychologist licensed under ch. 455. 

 A person who holds an “approved supervisor” certificate from the American Association of Marriage and 
Family Therapy. 

 A person who holds an “approved supervisor” certificate from the American Association for Marriage and 
Family Therapy. 

 An individual, other than an individual specified above, who was approved in advance by the Marriage and 
Family Therapist section. 

All supervisors shall be legally and ethically responsible for the activities of the Marriage and Family Therapist 
trainee.  Supervisors shall be available or make appropriate provision for emergency consultation and 
intervention.  Supervisors shall be able to interrupt or stop the Marriage and Family Therapist trainee from 
practicing in given cases and to stop the supervised relationship if necessary. 

 
 
 
#2574 (Rev. 8/11) 
Ch. 457, Stats. Page 1 of 2 

Committed to Equal Opportunity in Employment and Licensing 

39



Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services 
 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF MARRIAGE AND FAMLY THERAPY SUPERVISED EXPERIENCE 

(To be completed by supervisor only) 

NAME OF APPLICANT:  ______________________________________________________________  

NAME OF SUPERVISOR (please print):  ______________________________________________________________  

SUPERVISOR’S LICENSURE:  ____________________________  NUMBER:  ____________________  

1) Name and address of agency where supervised experience was gained: 

2) Beginning and ending dates of this supervised Marriage and Family Therapy experience: 

 From:  ______________________________________  To:  ______________________________________  
 month day year month day year 

I have supervised this applicant a total of _______ hours of MFT practice in no less than two years, including 
_______ hours of face-to-face client contact and 1 hour of face-to-face, supervision for every 10 client contact hours.  If 
needed, make a copy of this form for each experience site. 

3) The applicant’s title/position during the supervised Marriage and Family Therapy experience: 

I swear that the foregoing information is true and accurate, and the candidate for licensure has met the requirements of 
s. 457.10(3), Wis. Stats. 

 ______________________________________________  
 Signature of Supervisor 
 
 

 State of  ____________  County of  _________________  
 
 

 Subscribed and sworn to before this ____________ day of 
 
 

_______________________________________, 20_____, by  ______________________________________________  
 (Supervisor name) 
 

 ______________________________________________  
 Signature of Notary Public S E A L 
 

 ______________________________________________  
 Date Commission Expires 
 
NOTE: THIS AFFIDAVIT MUST BE SIGNED BY THE SUPERVISOR IN THE PRESENCE OF THE 

NOTARY, ON THE SAME DATE. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 2 of 2 

40


	A. Agenda 
	B. Minutes
	C.1 Paperless Initiative 
	How to Sign up for an Account
	Adobe Use
	Using SharePoint

	D. Legislation/ Administative Rules
	D.1 EO 61

	F. Position Statements
	G. Review of Forms
	1973
	2238
	2574

	ADP620.tmp
	APRIL 9, 2013
	AGENDA




